Braztrans Transportes Maritimos Limitada

Montemar Maritima S.A. Companhia Libra de Navegacao

Synopsis: The proposed agreement would authorize any two or more parties to coordinate and rationalize all aspects of their operations, including the chartering of vessels and vessel space, coordinate sailings, interchange equipment, and share facilities in the trade between ports and inland points in the United States and ports and inland points worldwide.

By Order of the Federal Maritime Commission.

Dated: August 13, 1999.

Ronald D. Murphy,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 99-21436 Filed 8-17-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-01-M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Security for the Protection of the Public; Indemnification of Passengers for Nonperformance of Transportation; Issuance of Certificate (Performance)

Notice is hereby given that the following have been issued a Certificate of Financial Responsibility for Indemnification of Passengers for Nonperformance of Transportation pursuant to the provisions of section 3, Public Law 89–777 (46 U.S.C. 817(e)) and the Federal Maritime Commission's implementing regulations at 46 CFR part 540, as amended:

American Classic Voyages Company, 1380 Port of New Orleans Place, New Orleans, LA 70130–1890

Vessel: Columbia Queen

American West Steamboat Company LLC, 2 Union Square, 601 Union Street, Suite 4343, Seattle, WA 98101

Vessel: Queen of the West

Carnival Corporation, 3655 NW 87th Avenue, Miami, FL 33178–2193

Vessels: Carnival Spirit and Carnival Victory

Celebrity Cruises Inc. (d/b/a Celebrity Cruises), 1050 Caribbean Way, Miami, FL 33132

Vessels: Millennium, Millennium II, Millennium III and Millennium IV

New Commodore Cruise Lines Limited (d/b/a Crown Cruise Line), 4000 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 385 South, Hollywood, FL 33021

Vessel: Crown Dynasty

New Commodore Cruise Lines Limited (d/b/a Capri Cruises), 4000

Hollywood Blvd., Suite 385 South, Hollywood, FL 33021

Vessel: Enchanted Capri

New Commodore Cruise Lines Limited (d/b/a Commodore Cruise Line), 4000 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 385 South, Hollywood, FL 33021

Vessel: Enchanted Isle

New Commodore Cruise Lines Limited (d/b/a Commodore Day Cruises), 4000 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 385 South, Hollywood, FL 33021

Vessel: Enchanted Sun

New Commodore Cruise Lines Limited (d/b/a World Explorer Cruises), 4000 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 385 South, Hollywood, FL 33021

Vessel: Universe Explorer

Norwegian Cruise Line Limited (d/b/a Norwegian Cruise Line and Orient Lines), 7665 Corporate Center Drive, Miami, FL 33126

Vessel: Crown Odyssey

Dated: August 13, 1999.

Ronald D. Murphy,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 99–21438 Filed 8–17–99; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6730–01–M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Security for the Protection of the Public; Financial Responsibility To Meet Liability Incurred for Death or Injury to Passengers or Other Persons on Voyages; Issuance of Certificate (Casualty)

Notice is hereby given that the following have been issued a Certificate of Financial Responsibility to meet Liability Incurred for Death or Injury to Passengers or Other Persons on Voyages pursuant to the provisions of section 2, Public Law 89–777 (46 U.S.C. 817(d)) and the Federal Maritime Commission's implementing regulations at 46 CFR part 540, as amended:

American West Steamboat Company LLC and QW Boat Company LLC, 2 Union Square, 601 Union Street, Suite 4343, Seattle, WA 98101

Vessel: Queen of the West

Carnival Corporation and Utopia Cruises, Inc., 3655 NW 87th Avenue, Miami, FL 33178–2193

Vessel: Carnival Triumph

Disney Cruise Vacations, Inc., Magical Cruise Company, Limited (d/b/a Disney Cruise Line) and DCL Services Ltd., 210 Celebration Place, Suite 400, Celebration, FL 34747–4600

Vessel: Disney Wonder

Holland America Line Westour Inc., Holland America Line N.V. and HAL Nederland N.V., 300 Elliot Avenue West, Seattle, WA 98119

Vessels: Volendam and Zaandam

Norwegian Cruise Line Limited (d/b/a Norwegian Cruise Line and Orient Lines) and Orient Lines Ltd., 7665 Corporate Center Drive, Miami, FL 33126

Vessel: Crown Odyssey

Norwegian Cruise Line Limited (d/b/a Norwegian Cruise Line), 7665 Corporate Center Drive, Miami, FL 33126

Vessel: Norwegian Sky Dated: August 13, 1999.

Ronald D. Murphy,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 21437 Filed 8–17–99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-01-M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 99-16]

Carolina Marine Handling, Inc. v. South Carolina State Ports Authority, Charleston Naval Complex Redevelopment Authority, Charleston International Projects Inc., and Charleston International Ports, LLC; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment

Notice is given that a complaint was filed by Carolina Marine Handling, Inc. ("Complainant"), against South Carolina State Ports Authority ("SPA"), Charleston Naval Complex Redevelopment Authority ("RDA"), Charleston International Projects, Inc. ("CIP"), and Charleston International Ports, LLC ("CIP"), herein collectively referred to as ("Respondents"). The complaint was served on August 13, 1999. Complainant alleges that Respondents violated sections 10(d)(1) and, pursuant to provisions of section 20(e)(3), sections 10(b)(11), 10(b)(12), 10(d)(3) and 10(d)(4) of the Shipping Act of 1984, 46 U.S.C. app. 1709(d)(1) and, pursuant to the provisions of § 1719(e)(3), §§ 1709(b)(11), (b)(12, (d)(3) and (d)(4), by refusal to negotiate with or to make available to Complainant adequate and suitable terminal, pier, dock, and storage facilities; interference with Complainants right to use of such facilities; and by granting terminal space and concessions to Respondent CIP and others while unreasonably denying comparable terminal space and concessions to Complainant.

This proceeding has been assigned to the office of Administrative Law Judges. Hearing in this matter, if any is held, shall commence within the time limitations prescribed in 46 CFR 502.61, and only after consideration has been given by the parties and the presiding officer to the use of alternative forms of dispute resolution. The hearing shall include oral testimony and crossexamination in the discretion of the presiding officer only upon proper showing that there are genuine issues of material fact that cannot be resolved on the basis of sworn statements, affidavits, depositions, or other documents or that the nature off the matter in issue is such that an oral hearing and crossexamination are necessary for the development of an adequate record. Pursuant to the further terms of 46 CFR 502.61, the initial decision of the presiding officer in this proceeding shall be issued by August 14, 2000, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by December 12, 2000.

Ronald D. Murphy,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 99-21446 Filed 8-17-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-01-M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Ocean Freight Forwarder License Revocations

The Federal Maritime Commission hereby gives notice that the following freight forwarder licenses have been revoked pursuant to section 19 of the Shipping Act of 1984 (46 U.S.C. app. 1718) and the regulations of the Commission pertaining to the licensing of Ocean Transportation Intermediaries, effective on the corresponding revocation dates shown below:

License No.: 3581

Name: Aleta W. Vernon d/b/a Danco Freight Forwarding Co.

Address: 163 Deertract Loop, Stoneville, NC 27048

Date Revoked: June 9, 1999

Reason: Failed to maintain a valid bond.

License No.: 3408

Name: Atlanta Customs Brokers and Freight Forwarders, Inc.

Address: 650 Atlanta South Parkway, Ste. 250, Atlanta, GA 30349 Date Revoked: June 15, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily. *License No.:* 4056

Name: Brian Min d/b/a B & A Express Address: 18747 Laurel Park Road, Rancho Dominquez, CA 90220

Date Revoked: July 12, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily. *License No.:* 2947

Name: Kintetsu Intermodal (U.S.A.), Inc.

Address: 1035 Watson Center Road, Carson, CA 90745

Date Revoked: May 1, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 1234

Name: Margarita T. Kuyoomjian d/b/a California International Forwarders

Address: 502 S. Irving Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90020

Date Revoked: April 29, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 3138 Name: Multi-Modal International, Inc.

Address: 3531 Casa Real Way, P.O. Box 81873, Las Vegas, NV 89180–1873

Date Revoked: May 6, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 4565 Name: Mundial Forwarding, Inc. Address: 918 Dunwood Drive, Houston,

TX 77076

Date Revoked: June 8, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 2806 Name: Oceanflight, Inc.

Address: 3199 Kinross Court, Herndon,

VA 20171 Date Revoked: May 1, 1999

Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 2755

Name: Pasco Associates Limited Partnership

Address: 1050 17th Street, N.W., Ste. 450, Washington, DC 20036

Date Revoked: April 29, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 2742

Name: Pegasus (N.Y.) Inc.

Address: 175–01 Rockaway Blvd., Ste. 203, Jamaica, NY 11434

Date Revoked: March 27, 1999

Reason: Failed to maintain a valid surety bond.

License No.: 2101

Name: Cosdel International Company, Inc.

Address: 55 New Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94105

Date Revoked: April 21, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 4053 Name: Exincargo, Inc.

Address: 7855 NW 29th Street, Suite 150, Miami, FL 33122

Date Revoked: May 14, 1999

Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 3352

Name: Fairway Express, Inc.

Address: 5250 W. Century Blvd., Ste. 415, Los Angeles, CA 90045–5941

Date Revoked: May 1, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 1896

Name: Fernando Rogus/Smith & Johnson (Warehouse) Inc. Address: c/o Wilson UTC, Inc., 750

Walnut Avenue, Cranford, NJ 07016 Date Revoked: May 5, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily. *License No.:* 4047

Name: Heywal Soo Kahng d/b/a Maturity International Transport

Address: 2039 W. Artesia Blvd., St. 144, Torrance, CA 90504

Date Revoked: April 30, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily. *License No.:* 4155

Name: King Senderax, Inc. d/b/a King

Senderax Cargo

Address: 17310 Crenshaw Blvd.,

Torrance, CA 90504 Date Revoked: June 8, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 2039

Name: Seven Seas Brokers Inc.

Address: 5453 N.W. 72nd Avenue, P.O. Box 661109, Miami Springs, FL 33266–1109

Date Revoked: May 27, 1999 Reason: Surrendered license

voluntarily.

License No.: 3848

Name: Suanna Widjaja Rossi and Robert William Rossi d/b/a Neptune Forwarding Co.

Address: 2127 Kendall Way, Acworth, GA 30102

Date Revoked: June 7, 1999

Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 795

Name: The Svensson Shipping Agency, Inc.

Address: 802 Garfield Avenue, Duluth, MN 55802

Date Revoked: June 17, 1999

Reason: Faled to maintain a valid bond.

License No.: 4325

Name: Trico American Air Freight & Forwarding Co.

Address: 5433 Eagle Industrial Court,

Hazelwood, MO 63042 Date Revoked: June 23, 1999

Reason: Surrendered license voluntarily.

License No.: 732

Name: Universal Transport (N.J.)
Corporation

Address: One Parker Plaza, Fort Lee, NJ 07024–2941

Date Revoked: June 29, 1999